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To: Interested Parties 
Re:  Questions and Answers about CDFI Fund Research Initiative 
Date: July 18, 2007 
 
In response to the Announcement of a CDFI Fund Research Initiative released in late 
June 2007, a number of questions have been received.  For the benefit of all potential 
proposers, the Question and Answer Document below has been prepared.  To obtain a 
copy of the original CDFI Fund Research Initiative Announcement, please access the 
CDFI Fund website at www.cdfifund.gov. 
 
 
 

Addendum to Announcement of CDFI Fund Research Initiative 
Questions and Answers about CDFI Fund Research Initiative 

July 18, 2007 
 
1) Is there a limit on overhead costs that may be included in the proposed project 

budget?    
 
Project budgets must specify overhead costs and explain why these costs are 
reasonable and cannot be funded outside the grant.  There is no explicit limit on the 
percentage of costs attributable to overhead.  Proposal reviewers will consider 
whether the overall budget for the project is reasonable for conducting the work 
when considering the merit of each proposal.  In addition, the CDFI Fund reserves 
the option of negotiating final grant amounts with researchers if that appears 
warranted.  
 
2) Can funds be used to buy out teaching during the time of the grant?    
 
Project budgets should be based on the hours each researcher will work on the 
research.  If the grant amount is sufficient for a researcher employed by a university 
to “buy out” teaching time, the researcher may make with the university whatever 
arrangements are needed to do so.  
 
 
3) Do any data sets that result from the research have to be made public or can they 

remain proprietary?  
 
If grant funds are used for analysis of a proprietary data set already created prior 
to grant award, the data set must be made available on request to reviewers of the 
resulting research paper and CDFI Fund Staff, (so that any results can be verified) 
but the data may remain proprietary.  If the grant funds are used for collection of 
new data, then the data set will not be proprietary.  
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To maintain confidentiality, researchers may strip any identifiers (i.e. name, 
address) from data. 
 
4) Can original qualitative research be proposed if it could be completed and 

analyzed during the six-month period of the grant?    
 
Yes.  
 
5) Is there a limit to how many proposals can be submitted with a specific individual 

as PI?   
 
No, there is no limit.  However, the proposal review will include an assessment of 
“the ability to carry out the work within the time and budget proposed.” (See 
“Evaluation Criteria” in the Announcement.)   
 
6) Can the funds be used to extend or analyze an existing proprietary database?    
 
Yes.   See answer to question #3. 
 
7) Is the usage of "loan" in the various research areas referring to lending 

specifically or any type of financing investments including equity?  
 
The research questions should have been more precisely defined to include equity 
investments as well as loans. 
 
8) How will other related research funding be evaluated when scoring  

the applications?    
 

Other funding for the research proposed will be examined in order to assess both 
the reasonableness of the proposed grant amount and the likelihood that the project 
will be completed within the timeframe required.  
 
9) Is there specific weighting for the various evaluation criteria listed? 
 
No, there is no specific weighting for the criteria.  However, if the proposal 
reviewers find that the project is not likely to be accomplished in the timeframe or 
within the proposed budget, the project will not be awarded a grant. 
 
10) Can you provide more information about the CIIS data that would be available to 

researchers? 
 
We encourage you to access the CDFI Fund website at the following address:  
http://www.cdfifund.gov/what_we_do/ciis.asp 
 
In addition, we attach a description of the CIIS data at the end of the Q&A. 
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11) Would the CDFI Fund provide the data free of cost to grant recipients undertaking 
studies?   

 
Yes, the data will be provided free of charge. 
 
13) Would more than one year of data be available? 
 
Data for FY 03, 04, 05 would be available, possibly FY 06 as well. 
 
14) Is there any way to get the names of the CDFIs from the Institution Level Data?  
 
The identities of CDFIs will be provided.   Any researcher that has access to the 
CIIS or any Fund data would sign an agreement guaranteeing the confidentiality of 
these data; users would agree to secure these data and allow access only to those 
who are actually analyzing these data for the specific research project funded by 
this research initiative; ownership would be retained by the CDFI Fund and all data 
would be returned to the Fund and the user will agree to destroy all copies of the 
data after completing this project.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 




















